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To the Members of VLCC Health Care Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of VLCC Health Care
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Companies Director’s report but does not include the
standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management or those charges with governance for the Standalone ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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»

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the "Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to
this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 27(i) to the standalone Ind
AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  There were no. amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yoqen&r Seth

Partner

Membership Number: 094524
UDIN: 19094524AAAABE1822

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 16, 2019
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of the section on ‘“Report on Other Legal and Regqulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date

Re: VLCC Health Care Limited (*the Company’)

i (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inciuding guantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment/ fixed assets are held in the name of
the company.

ii. The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iiXa), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they are
interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments made and, guarantees, and
securities given have been complied with by the company.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related to the education service and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the same.

vii. (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income- tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory
dues have been reqularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been slight delay
in a few cases. The provisions relating to duty of excise are not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, income tax, service tax, sales fax, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(c) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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Amount under . . . .
Name of the Statue Nature of dues dispute ::‘r;::t rgl);teswmm the g:;:::;;where the dispute is
(Rs. In lacs)
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax Assessment years 2011- | Commissioner of Income
1961 112.82 12 and 2013-15 tax, (Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax Assessment years 2012- | Income Tax  Appellate
1961 11.39 13t02013-14 tribunal
Kerala value Added | Sales tax Assessment year 2009- | Deputy Commissioner
tax 23.35 10,2010-11,2011- (Appeals) Ernakulam
i 12,2012-13 and 2014-15
Maharashfra Value | Sales tax Assessment year 2012- 13 | Deputy Commissioner
Added Tax 13.42 and 2013-14 (Appeals) Mumbai
Uttar Pradesh Value | Sales tax Assessment year 2009- 19 | Joint Commissioner
Added Tax 61.36 ,2010-11 and 2013-14 (Appeal) Ghaziabad
Luxury tax Act,1988 | Luxury tax Aprii 01, 2011 to | Appellate Tribunal of
14.03 November 17,2011 Commercial Tax, Bhopal
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Assessment Year 2004 -05 | Custom excise and Service
1.36 Tax Appellate Tribunal,
Delhi
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Assessment Year 2012- | Commissioner Customs &
4,53 13,2013-14, 2014-15 and | Central Excise ( Appeal -1),
2015-16 Noida
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Assessment Year 2012- | Commissioner Customs &
8.33 13,2013-14, 2014-15 and | Central Excise ( Appeal -1),
2015-16 Lucknow
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Assessment Year 2008 -09 | Custom excise and Service
7.05 ,2000-10, 2010 -11, 2011- | Tax Appellate Tribunal,
‘ 12, 2012-13,2013-14 , | Chennai
2014-15 and 2015-16
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Assessment Year 2012- | Commissioner Customs &
87.4 13,2013-14, 2014-15 and | Central Excise ( Appeal -1),
2015-16 Delhi
Finance Act,1994 Service tax Assessment year 2012-13 | Commissioner Customs &
0.40 to 2014 -15 Central Excise ( Appeal),
Jaipur
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Assessment Year 2011-12 | Commissioner Customs &
0.84 to 2013-14 i Central Excise ( Appeal),
Kochin
Finance Act, 1994 Service tax Assessment year 2008-09 | Commissioner of custom &
1.13 to 2011-12 Central Excise (Appeals),
Kolkata
viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the

Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
- government or dues to debenture holders.

ix. in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by way term loans for the purposes for which they were
raised.

X. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of

the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers
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Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

{n our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential aliotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions‘with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

\

Per Yoq%er Seth

Partner

Membership Number: 094524

UDIN: 19094524AAAABE1822

Place of Signature: Gurugram 7
Date: September 16, 2019
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ANNEXURE Il TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE IND
AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VLCC HEALTH CARE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VLCC Health Care Limited (“the
Company") as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™ and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide rgasemaple assurance regarding
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prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadeguate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

v

per Yoygndar Seth
Partner

Membership Number: 094524
UDIN: 19094524AAAABE1822

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 16, 2019



VLCC Health Care Limited
Batance Sheet as at March 31,2019
CIN No,-U74899DL1996P1L082842

(At amionnts in INR Lakhs wilesy wtherwise stated)
As at As at As at
Notes March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
(Nete 2.2) (Note 2.2)
ASSETS ' ‘
Non-eurrent assefs
Property, plant and equipment 4 7,017 8,462 9.173
Capital work in progress 4 - - 20
Intangible assets 5 347 418 350
Investment in subsidiaries 6 10,345 9,549 9,329
Financial assets: i
- Investments * 7(a) 0 0 0
« Loans (b} 8438 816 1,205
- Other bank balancos 7te) 91 146 3
~ Others Kt 1 2 1
Other non- citrent assets 9 260 368 381
Deferred tax assets (net) 15 2,719 2,719 2,719
21,728 22,483 23,180,
Current assets
Inventories 8 2,018 1915 1,699
Financial assets.
- Loaus 7(b) 409 281 69
- Trade receivables c) 278 351 733
- Cash and cash equivalents Hd) 2,454 2,012 2,744
- Other bank balances 7(e) 54 25 106
- Others Fifh) 51 47 3
Current tax assets (net} 15 324 322 239
Other current assets 9 320 359 603
5,908 5,312 6,224
Totul Assets 27,636 27,795 29,104
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Lquity
Equity share capital 10 3,767 3.767 3767
Other equity”
Share Preming 6,430 6,430 6,430
General Reserve ilG P16 116
Relnined earnings (4.325) {3.392) £1,638)
Total Eguity 5,988 6,921 8,628
LIABILITIES
Non- curreat liabilities
Financial liabiliiles
- Borrowings 1i(a) 2,791 3,302 4,543
Provisions 12 537 A0T 301
Contract Liabilities 13 852 465 224
Other non current liabilities 14 158 155 162
‘Total non- current liabilities 4,338 4,329 5,230
Current fialbilities
Financial liubilines
- Borowings 11a) 808 367 377
- Trade pavables
- Total autstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Smatl enterprises 20 146 42
- Tutal sutstanding dues of creditors other than Micro enterprises and Smail
enterprises 1) 7,660 7433 6,641
- Other tinaecial Liabilities 11{c) 1,850 2,450 2,741
Provisions 2 280 245 206
Contract Liahilities 13 5.369 4 890 5,127
Other Current Liabilivies 14 1,197 614 157
17,310 16,543 15,54%
Total Liabilitics 21,648 20,875 20,779
Total Equity and Liabilities 27,636 27,795 29,404
*0) tepresents amount is below the rounding off norm adapted by the Company.
Summary of Sigmificant Accounting pelicies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date -
For 8.1 Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behall of the Board of Directors
Chartered decountants of V1EC Health Care Limited
1CA] SirmQegistration Number: 1 01049W/E300004 ,
1
Jayant Khosia SafffeerAbyja
Managing Director Director

Parner

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 16th September, 2019

DiN No. 08321843

Narinder Kumar

Group Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

il

DI No, 00043118




VLCC Health Care Limited
| Statement of Profit and loss for year ended March 31, 2019
CIN No.-U74899D1L,1996PL.C082842
l (Al amounts in INR Lakths unless otherwise stated)
For the yéar ended For the year ended
| Notes  Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
____ (Note2 )
l Income ‘
Revenue from contracts with customers 16 37.977 35,834
I Other income 17 99 25
Total income (A) 38,076 _ 35,859
Expenses
l Cost of materials consumed 19 4,469 4,673
Purchase of stock-in-trade 1,272 791
| Decrease/(Increase) in inventories of stock-in-trade 20 (257) (i9
Employee benefits expense 21 13,254 11,641
| Other expenses : 24 16,846 16,901
Total expenses Before Interest, Depreciation, Amortisation (B) 35,584 33,987
J Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and {C)=(A-B) 2,492 1.872
l Amortisation (EBITDA) '
Finance income o)) 18 152 96
| Finance costs (E) 22 1,564 1,598
I Depreciation and amortization expense (F) 23 1,944 2.050
I Profit /(Loss) before tax G=(C+D-E-F) (864) (1680)
Tax expense:
I Current tax - -
Adjustrnent of tax relating to earlier years - (8)
| Deferred tax charge/ {credit) - -
Total tax expense (H) . (8)
Profit/(loss) for the vear 1=(G-H) - (864)  (1672)
Other Comprehensive Income
l Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
- Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (Refer Note 31) {70} (30
' - Income tax credit/(charge) of above item : - -
Othier Comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 70) (31}
l Total Comprehensive income/{loss) for the year (934) (1703}
' Earnings/(loss) per share: 25
Basic and Diluted in INR (2.29} (4.44)
' Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
l As per our report of even date
l For S,R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of YLCC Health Care Limited
| "Al Firm Begistration Number:101049W/E300004 W‘C&)\_ﬁ
Jayant Khosla
| Managing Director Director
DIN No. 08321843 DIN No. 00043118
] Membership No. : 94524 ﬁ (
' Place: Gurgaon Narinder Kumar_V
' Date: 16th September, 2019 Group Chief Financial Officer and Company Sectetary



VLCC Health Care Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019
CIN No.-U74899DL1996PLC082842

(Al amounts in INR Lalkhs unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
. { Note 2.2)
Cash flow from operating activities '
Profit/ (loss) before tax (864) (1,680)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,944 2,050
Provision for doubtful trade receivables (11) 3
Provision for decommissioning liabilities 4 3
Provision for Lease Equalisation 2 (17
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 3 24
Interest costs ' 1,564 1,598
Interest income (152) (93)
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/ loss | 17 4
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,507 1,890
Movements in working capital:
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables and cther liabilities 1,841 985
(Decrease)fincrease in provisions 88 145
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivable g4 379
Decrease/(increase) in inventories (103) (216)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets il4 393
2,024 1,686
Cash generated from operations 4,531 3,576
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) {2) (75)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operating activities (A} 4,529 3,501
Cash flow from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 123 113
Purchase of property, plant and equipment including Capital advance (1,106) (1,156)
Sale of Non-Current Investments - 25
Purchase of Non-Current Investments (796) (243)
Interest Received 23 7
Proceeds from majurity of Bank Deposits with original maturity 62 62
of more than three months
Investment in Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than (36) (123
three months
Net cash generated/(used) in investing activities (B) (1,319)

_{1,730)

Ly
1



VLCC Health Care Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2019 (Cont'd)
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

{Cont'd)
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
( Note 2.2)
Net cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 700 96
Repayments of long-term borrowings {1,434) (1,894)
Movement in Cash Credits/Unsecured Loan (Net) (59) 490
Interest paid {(1,564) (1,607)
Net cash generated/(used) from financing activities (C) (2,357) . (2,914)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 442 (732)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,012 2,744
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,454 2,012

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.

As per our repor! of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants of VLCC Health Care Limited

[CAI Firm Registration Number:101049W/E300004

Yogende
Partner
Membership No. : 94524

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 16th September. 2019

Jayant Khosla

Managing Director
DIN No. 08321843

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

andéep Alnija
Director
DIN No. 00043118



VLCC Health Care Limited

CIN No.-U74899DL1996PLC082842
(All amounts in INR Laxhs unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

2. Equity Share Capital [refer note 10]

Particulars 'Number of Amount
shares (in
Lakhs) _
As at April 1, 2017 377 3.767
Add : Issue of equity share capital - -
As at Marc;h 31, 201_8 377 7 3,767
As at April 1, 2018 377 3,767
Add : Issue of equity share capital - -
As at March 31, 2019 377 3,767
b. Other Equity
Particalars Reserves and surplus Total
Securities " General Retained
Premium Reserve earnings

As at April 1, 2017( Reported) 6430 116 (1,050) 5,496
Effect of adoption of IND AS 115 (Note 2.2(ii)) - - _ {638). (638)
[As at April I, 2017 (Restated) 6,430 116 (1.688) 4,858
Profit/(Loss) for the year - - (1,672) (1,672)
Other comprehensive income/{loss) - - (31 (30
Total comprehensive income/(loss) - - (1 ,704) (1,704)
As at March 31, 2018 6,430 116 (3.352) 3,154
Profit/{(Loss) for the year - - (864) (864)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) - - (70) (70}
Total comprehensive income/(loss) - - (934) (934}
As at March 31,2019 6,430 116 (4,325) 2,220

provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

Summary of sighificant accounting policies (refer note 2. 1

Securities premium: Represents the premium received in.earlier years upon issue of shares and can be utilized as per the

General reserve: The amount in general reserve has been recorded as per Companies (Transfer of Profits to Reserves) Rules,
1975 on declaration of dividend in earlier years and can be utilized as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
CAIl Fi

Yogenddx Seth
Partner
Membership No, : 94524

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 16th September, 2019

egistration Number: 101049W/E300004

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

For and con behalf of the Board of Directors
of VLCC Health Care Limited

Tthad - :

Sandeep Ahuja
Director
__.DIN No. 00043118
B

Jayant Khosla
Managing Director
DIN No. 08321843

Narinder Kumar

Group Chief Financial Officer andCom’/ any Secretary
Place: Gurgaon

Date: 16th September, 2019




VLCC Health Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 -

1. Corporate information

VLCC Health Care Limited (‘the Company’) is an unlisted public limited company domiciled in India and
was incorporated in India on October 23, 1996 under the provisions of the Companies Act, applicable in
India. The registered office of the company is located at M-14 Greater Kailash-II, Commercial Complex
New Delhi.

The Company is principally engaged in the business of maintaining and running beauty, slimming, fitness
and health centres at various locations, sale of beauty products and also provide vocational training in
beauty and nutrition across India.

These separate financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by
Board of Directors on September 16, 2019.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Company has voluntarily adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133
of Companies Act, 2013 read together with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 during
the year ended March 31, 2017 with transition date being April 1, 2015.

The financial statements comply with all material aspects with Ind AS notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
the relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements have been prepared on the acerual and going concern basis, and the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value as specifically required
by Ind AS. (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments}.

Rounding of amounts
The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when
otherwise indicated as per the requirement of Schedule I11.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

» Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

s Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
tweive months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

e It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e [t is held primarily for the purpose of trading




VLCC Health Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(A1l amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated

e [tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of

assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as

12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current,

b) Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional
currency. The functional currency and items ncluded in the financial statements are measured using that

functional currency.

Transactions and balances :
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Measurement of foreign currency monetary items al the Balance Sheet date
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency

spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Treatment of exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement of foreign currency non-monetary items at the Balance Sheet date

e  Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactioss.

o Non-monetary items measured at fair value ina foreign currency are translated vsing the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,

respectively).

¢) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial mstruments at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

o In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

"

o,

T

participant that would use the asset in its highest and bestuse. " 7 -
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The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statemients are

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period. ‘

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial
assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration, wherever applicable. At each reporting
date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to
be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management
or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

d) Revenue recognition

Revenue from services
The Company recognizes revenue primarily from beauty and slimming packages.

Ind AS 115 was issued on 28" March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 18 Revenue and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers effective April 1, 2018. The Company
adopted Ind AS 115 using the full retrospective method of adoption and comparative information has also
been restated to be reported under Ind AS 115,

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
discounts, credits, price concessions and other incentives and discounts. Revenue also excludes taxes
collected from the customers.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition

« The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multipie products and
services to a customer over a period of time. The Company assesses the products/services promised in
a contract and identifies distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct
performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer
1o benefit independently from such deliverables.
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« Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could
be sither a fixed amount of customer consideration or vatiable consideration with elements such as
discounts, price concessions, etc. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the
transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated
amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and
is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Company allocates the elements of variable
considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract unless there is observable evidence that

they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.

- The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance
obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on the basis of
the relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract.

« The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a
point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how customer
consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence
of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such product or service,
transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

Revenue from regular beauty sales are recognised as services are provided to the customers.

Revenue in respect of tuition fees received from students for courses run by the Company and also those
launched under various schemes by the Government of India is recognised over the period of the course as
the Company believes that the obligation is towards the full course rather than a particular session. Fecs are
recorded at invoice value, net of discounts, rebate, incentives if any.

Revenue in respect of non-refundable lump sum fees received from the franchisee’s or infrastructure
provider is recognised over the period of the contract.

Revenue in respect of royalty received from the franchisees is recognised on accrual basis at the end of each
month in terms of the agreement. '

Revenue from products

Revenue from sale of goods at each of the centres is recognised on delivery of goods to the customers. Sales
are recorded at invoice value, net of discount, rebate, incentives and indirect taxes if any.

Contract Balances -

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goads or services to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Unearned and deferred revenue (‘contract liability’) is recognised when there are billings in excess of
revenues.
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Interest income . :
Income from interest on time deposits is recognised on the time proportion method taking into consideration
the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rates using the effective interest rate (EIR).

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company®s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally
when shareholders approve the dividend.

e) Taxes
Income taxes consist of current taxes and changes in deferred tax liabilities and assets.

Current income tax

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance
with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws.
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax _

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets

and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

« Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax

credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

e  When the deferred 1ax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a busgqgsg—i:”g&“"‘piqati011 and, at the time of

e o
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the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

f) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses if any. Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment
are ready for use, as intended by the management.

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. The
cost of property, plant and equipment includes interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of
qualifying assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use and other incidental expenses incurred

up to that date.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the
cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met (refer Note 12). Refer to Note
3 regarding significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions and provisions for further
information about the recorded Asset retirement liability.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work in progress
Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

T

Depreciation
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Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated

residual value.
Depreciation on all tangible Property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight line method over the
estimated useful life of the assets at rates specified in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013, which is as

follows:

Particulars Useful life (Years)
Plant and Equipment 13 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers :
e Servers 6 years

o Desktops/ laptops 3 years

- Leasehold improvements are amortized over the period of lease, including the optional period of lease
- All assets costing Rs.5,000 or below are depreciated in full on pro-rata basis from the date of their
acquisition.

Depreciation on addition to Property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the
assets are acquired/installed. Depreciation on sale/deduction from Property, plant and equipment is
provided for upto the date of sale, deduction, discardment as the case may be.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the

statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

g) Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of

an intangible asset comprises its purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use and net of any trade discounts and rebates.

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase / completion is recognised as an expense
when incurred unless it is probable that such expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic
benefits in excess of its originally assessed standards of performance and such expenditure can be measured
and attributed to the asset reliably, in which case such expenditure is added to the cost of the asset.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for
impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from ‘ndefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis:: -
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Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life as foliows:

Particulars Useful life (Years)
Goodwill 10 years
Computer sofiware ' 6 years

Mobile applications _ ' 3 years

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each
financial vear and the amortization method is revised to reflect the changed pattern.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of intangible assets are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised.

h) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are
capitalised as part of cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity
on the qualifying assets is interrupted. In accordance with an opinion received from the expert advisory
committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the company has during the year capitalized
borrowing costs in respect of construction of qualifying assets completed within a period of five to seven
months.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

i) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease where risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor is classified as operating lease.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Company has ascertained that the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases and therefore are not
straight-lined. Hence, the lease payments are recognised on an accrual basis as per terms of the lease

agreeinent.

j) Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost (on FIFO basis) and net realisable value. Cost includes all expenses
incurred in bringing the goods to their present location including octroi and other levies, transit insurance
and receiving charges. o
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. '

k) Impairment of non-financial assets :

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether therz is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates
the asset’s recoverable amount based on estimates of future cash flows arising from continuing use of such
assets and from its ultimate disposal. A provision for impairment loss is recognised where it is probable
that the carrying value of an asset exceeds the amount to be recovered through use or sale of the asset.

Tn assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into
account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to
OCIL. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation
surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Compary estimates the asset’s or cash generating units {(“CGU) recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation
increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 March and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of cach CGU (or Company of
CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in
future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite uscful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 March at the CGU
level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

1) Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions :
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
setlle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount ei-tiE~a bligation. The expense

s
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relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Decommissioning lability .

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of a leased facility. Decommissioning costs
are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and
are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax
rate that reflects the tisks specific to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated
future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the
estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a }ability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

m) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the
provident fund are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when an employee renders the
related service. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company operates a funded defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees. Benefits payable to eligible
employees of the Company with respect to gratuity, a defined benefit plan is accounted for on the basis of
an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date. In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.
the plan provides for lump sum payments (o vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on
tertnination of employment in an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of
service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The present value of such obligation is
determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan
assets as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled. The expected return on
plan assets is based on the assumed rate of return of such assets.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan asscts (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave is treated as short-term employee benefit as the Company has no unconditional right to
defer the liability. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that
it expects to pay as a resuit of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.
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n) Employee Share-based payments

The Company has formulated employee Stock Option Plan as approved & modified by Compensation
Committee / Board of Directors of the Company from time to time. The Plan provides for grant of Stock
Options to eligible employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to acquire equity shares of the Company
that vest in a graded manner and that are to be exercised within a specified period. The options are to be
converted into one share at a predetermined price to be exercised in accordance with the plan.

The exercise price of the options shall be fair market value on the date of grant per-option. That cost is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the
pumber of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit
for a period represents the movement in curnulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or
service conditions have not been met. Where .awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,

provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense
had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is
cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining clement of the fair value of the award is
expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
diluted earnings per share.

Under the approved plan, the company has issued shares to the VLCC Employce Welfare Trust at fair
market value determined on the date of issu¢ which is holding the shares on behalf of the employees.

o) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability

or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initiaily at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at

St
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fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCD

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCD)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is most applicable to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses

arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s consolidated balance sheet) when:

¢ The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss on the trade receivable (financial assets) and credit risk exposure.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade

receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather,
it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial

recognition.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on

portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates

over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking

estimates are analysed. IR




VLCC Health Care Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2019
(All amounts in Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense
in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the
P&L.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings or as payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, etc.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium .on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement

of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. F inancial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as
a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined

as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

p) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only
if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period,

unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented '

q) Cashand Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques in hand, credit
card receivables and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as
they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

r} Investments

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or

has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those

returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if

the Comipany has: '

e Powerover the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee

o Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

¢ The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Long-term investments are carried individually at cost less provision for dimin ution, other than temporary,

in the value of such investments. Current investments are carried individually, at the lower of cost and fair

value. Cost of investments include, acquisition charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.

$}) Measurement of EBITDA
The Company presents Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA) in the
statement of profit or loss, this is not specifically required by Ind AS 1. The terms EBITDA are not defined
in Ind AS. Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT allows companies to present Line items, sub -line items and sub-
totals shall be prescinted as an addition or substitution on the face of the Financial Statements when such
presentation is relevant to an understanding of the company’s financial position or performance or to cater
to industry /sector- specific disclosure requirements or when required for compliance with the amendments
to the Companies Act or under the Indian Accounting Standards.
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Accordingly, the Company has elected to present earnings before interest. tax, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the Statement of Profit and Loss. In its
measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs, finance
income and tax expense.

2.2 New Accounting Standards

Disclosure of Ind AS 115 : Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 115 was issued on 28 March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18
Revenue and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers.
Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and
requires that revenue be recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a -customer.

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and

circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers.

The standard also

specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to
fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosures.
The Company adopted Ind AS 115 using the full retrospective method of adoption. Accordingly, restated

comparative numbers and presented opening balance sheet as at April 01, 201

7. The Company has applied

practical expedient and not considered contracts already closed as at year end for the catch-up impact.

The Impact on Statement of Profit & Loss, Equity and Balance Sheet is as below :-

() Impact on Profit & Loss Account due to Ind AS 115:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended March 31, | ended March 31,
2019 2018
(INR Lakhs) (INR Lakhs)
Revenue before Ind AS 115 adjustments 38,044 35,940
Adjustment as per IND AS 115 :-
| Beauty and Slimming Packages (a) 24 (9
Income from Franchisees (b) (43) (57)
Revenue from contract with customers 37,977 35.834
(i) Impact on Equity due to Ind AS 115
Particulars Asat April 1,
2017
(INR Lakhs)
Adjustment as per Ind AS 115 through Retained Earnings
Beauty and Slimming Packages (a) (180)
“Income from Franchisees (b) (458)
Impact on Equity (638)
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(iii)  Impact on Balance Sheet due to Ind AS 115:

Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March As at April
2019 31,2018 1,2017
(INR Lakhs) (INR Lakhs) | (INR Lakhs) |
Details of Contract liabilities:
Balance before application of IND AS 115 6,154 5,279 4,813
Adjustment through Retained Earnings (Refer (ii} - - 638
above) :
Adjustment as per Ind AS 115
Beauty and Slimming Packages (a) 24 19 -
Income from Franchisees (b} 43 57 -
Balance as at end of the year 6,221 5,355 5,451

Notes: -

(a) Beauty and Slimming packages

Before Ind-AS 113, revenue from fees received from customers towards
were recognised on a pro-rata basis over the period of the package.
revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or

judgements in determination of contract price, determination of timin
are made to the revenues and contract liabilities

obligation etc. Based on best estimate the adjustments

After adoption of Ind-A
services to customers and involve

beauty and slimming packages

S 115, the

g of completion of performance

earlier recognised. Accordingly, the revenue from beauty and slimming packages has decreased by INR 24

lakhs and INR 19 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March
corresponding impact to the statement of profit and loss. Further, as at March 31, 2017 the impa

31, 2018 respectively with a

ct of Rs

458 lakhs on the contract liability has been adjusted from Retained carnings as per transitional provisions

of Ind-AS 115.

(b) Income from Franchisees

Before Ind-AS 1135, revenue in respect of non-refundable lump sum fees receive
recognised over the period of the contract after attributing revenue to services ren
up whereas after adoption of Ind AS 115, the entire non-refundable lump sum

period of contract. ‘Accordingly,

Standards issued but not yet effective:

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issu
financial statements.are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards,

they become effective.

the revenue from franchisees has decre
lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 respective
the statement of profit and loss. Further, as at March 31, 2017 the impact 0
Hiability has been adjusted from Retained earnings as per transitional provisions of In

d from the franchisee’s 1s
dered on the first time set
fees is recognised over the
ased by INR 43 lakhs and INR 56
ly with a corresponding impact to
f Rs 180 lakhs on the contract
d-AS 115.

ance of the Group’s
if applicable, when
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The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standaids)
Amendment Rules, 2017 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 amending
the following standard:

Ind AS 116 Leases

Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including
appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Ind AS
116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting
for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases
of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12
months or less). At.the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments (i.c., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense

on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to re-measure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g.. a
change in the lcase term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine those payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset

Ind AS 116 is eftective for the Company w.e.f, April 01, 2019 using either one of the following tw2
methods:

(a) retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, with the option to elect certain practical expedients
as defined within Ind AS 116 (the full retrospective method); or

(b) retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying Ind AS 116 recognized at the date of
initial application (April 01, 2019) and providing certain additional disclosures as defined in Ind AS 116
(the modified retrospective method). '

The Company intends to adopt the standard from 1 April 2019.The Company continues to evaluate the
available transition methods and its contractual arrangements. The ultimate impact on leases resulting from
the application of Ind AS 116 will be subject to assessments that are dependent on many variables,
including, but not limited to, the terms of the contractual arrangements and the mix of business. The
Company's considerations also include, but are not limited to, the comparability of its financial statements
and the comparability within its industry from application of the new standard to its contractual

arrangements.

Ind AS 21 The Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

The amendment clarifies on the accounting of transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance
consideration in a foreign currency. The appendix explains that the date of the transaction, for the purpose
of determining the exchange rate, is the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset of
deferred income liability. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is

established for each payment or receipt. The Company is evaluating the impact of this amendment oh its
financial statements.
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Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable
profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine future taxable profits
and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more
than their carrying amount. Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on
initial application of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period
may be recognised in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate),
without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities

applying this relief must disclose that fact.

These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company as the Company has no deductible
temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

Ind AS 19 - plan amendment, curtailment or settlement:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’,
in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

The amendments require an entity:

« to use updated assuniptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the
period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

» to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in
a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual .period beginning on or after April 1,2019. The
Company has established an implementation team to implement and evaluate the changes to accounting
system and processes, and additional disclosure requirements that may be necessary.

3. Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
(including contingent Liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The Management
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future
results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates
are recognized in the periods in which the results are known/ materialise.

3.1 Significant judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessee .

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for certain facilities and office premises. The
Company based cn an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements has determined that the
lease terin is not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property, the present value
of future rentals does uot constitute significant portion of the fair value of underlying property and
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties are not transferred to the Company at the end
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of the lease and thus these leases are recorded as operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company bases its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the conirol of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when

they occur.

Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of cash-settled transactions with empioyees using a black-scholes
model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the
terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs
to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-
based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 33.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present
value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. Ao actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive 1o changes
in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reperting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate tor
plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality
tables tend to change only at interval in response t0 demographic changes. Future salary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 31.

Also refer Note 2.2 for judgements on revenue recognition.
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4,

At March 31, 2019

Property, plant & equipment
Freehold  Plantand  Furniture Vehicles Office Leasehold Computer Total  Capiral
Land equipment and fixtures equipment improvements equipment work in
progress #
Gross Block R
(At cost)
At April 01,2017 - 4,435 394 95 636 3,974 116 11,671 20
Add: Additions 261 556 24 146 110 249 26 1,312 .
Less: Disposals - (393) 27) 31y (42) {184) {3) (681) {20}
At April 01, 2018 261 4,598 391 210 T4 6,039 139 12,362 S
Add: Additions - 240 66 5 147 169 11 639
Less: Disposals - (479) (50) (3) (169) (1,0§5) (33) (1,749}
At March 31, 2019 261 4,359 407 212 702 5,194 117 11,252 -
Depreciation
At April 01, 2017 - 561 111 33 216 1,538 37 2,498
Add: Charge for the year - 690 73 27 154 960 41 1,945
LLess: Disposals - {300) (23) (17) (32) (169) 3 (544)
At April 01,2018 - 951 162 45 338 2,329 75 3,899
Add: Charge for the year - 545 67 23 159 1,031 33 1,858
Less: Disposals - {375} {47 (b {161) (1,003 (32) (1,622) .
As at March 31, 2019 - 1,120 182 67 335 2,355 76 4,135
Net carrying value
At March 31,2018 261 3,648 229 166 386 3,710 64 8,462 -
At March 31, 2019 261 3,239 226 145 367 2,838 41 7,117 =
# Capital work in progress majorty comprise of leasehold improvements.
Disposals includes asset write off of Gross book value Rs. 1,333 Lakhs { Net Book Value Rs. 308 Lakhs)
, Intangible assets
Computer Goodwill Total
Gross Block '
(At cost)
At April 01, 2017 4338 1 439
Add: Additions. 172 - 172
Less: Disposals - - -
At April 01, 2018 610 1 61
Add: Additions 15 - 15
Less: Disposals - - -
At March 31, 2019 625 1 626
Amortisation and tmpairment
At April 01. 2017 87 1 38
Add: Amortisation 105 - 108
At April 01, 2018 192 1 193
Add: Amortisation 16 - 36
At March 31,2019 278 1 279
Net carrying value
At March 31, 2018 418 - 418
347 - 347
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6. Investment in Subsidiaries

Unguoted equily investments Sfilly paid-up
fnvestments in equity instruments of subsidiaries (at cost)

43,75,000 (March 31, 2018: 43,75,000) Equity shares of INR 10 each fully
paid up of VLCC Personal Care Limited

37,79,316 (March 31, 2018: 33,99,837) Ordinary shares of US § 1 each
fully paid up of VLCC International Tnc., British Virgin Islands

Total

Apgregate value of unquoted equity investments
Aggregate amount of impairment in value on investments

Mareh 31,2019 March 31,2018
1,900 1,900
8.445 7,649
10,345 9,549
10,345 9,549

VLCC International Inc has negative net worth. However, the Company basis value in use determined using Discounted

Cash Flow (‘DCF’), does not consider there to be any impairment.

7. Financial assets

7(a) Non-current investments

Invesiment in government securities (Unquoted){at amortised cost) *
6 year National Savings Certificale
(pledged with sales tax authoritics)

* Absolute amounts before rounding off are Rs 23,000 as at March 31,
2019 and March 31, 2018,

7(b) Loans .
{Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) (at amortised

cost)

Non Current
Security deposits
- Considered good
- Considered doubtful

Less: Provision for doubtful deposils

Current
Security deposits
Advance o employees

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
0 0
Mareh 31,2019 March 31,2018
848 819
156 156
1,004 975
(155) (156)
848 819
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
327 231
82 50
281

409
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7(c) Trade receivables

Unsecured
- Receivables from related parties, considered good (refer note 29)

- Receivables from others,considered good
- Considered doubtful

Less :Provision for trade receivables
- Considered doubtful

Total Trade receivables

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

16 18
262 333

50 217
328 568
(50) (217)
278 351
278 351

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other

person, or from firms or private companies respectively in which any director 1s a partner,

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of not more than 30 days.

7(d) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:
- On current account
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months

Cash on hand *
Cheques on hand
Credit card receivables

* [ncludes foreion currencies equivalent to

7(e) Other Bank Balances
Non Current
Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months

Current
Deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than

twelve months

Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months

7(f) Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise } (at amortised

Non Current
Interest accrued on hank deposits

Current
Other receivable

a director or a member.

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
498 720
8 0
904 498
649 543
395 251
2,454 2,012
3 4
91 146
91 146
35 25
19 -
54 25
1 2
i 2
51 47
51 47
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8. Inventories

{At lower of cost or net realisable value)

Consumables #
Stock in trade {(acquired for trading)
Total

# including stock in transit

Inventory includes products mainly for Beauty and Slimming Services

9, Other asseis

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Non- Current
Capital advances
Deferred Lease -security deposit

Advance to VLCC Employee Welfare Trust (Refer Note 29)

Tax paid under protest

(i) VAT/Service tax/Custom tax
(i1) Luxury Tax

Prepaid Expenses

Current
Advance given to suppliers

Balances with government authorities

Deferred Lease -securiiy deposit
Prepaid expenses

“Miarch 31,2019 March 31,2018

1,435 1,589
583 326
2018 1915
62 -

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

5 8
175 273
33 33
23 18
18 18
6 20
260 368
121 176
18 9
85 89
96 85
320 339
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10. Share Capital

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Authorised share capif_al
5,00,00,000 (March 31, 2018: 50,000,000) Equity
shares of INR 10 each 5,000 5,000

issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares i
1,76,68,283 (March 31, 2018: 3,76,68,283) Equity 3,767 3,767
shares of INR 10 each with voting rights

Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 3,767 ' 3,767

a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, No. of shares Amount
subscribed and fully paid (In Lakhs)

At April 01,2017 377 3,767
Issued during the year - -
At March 31,2018 : : 377 3,767
Issued during the year - -
At March 31,2019 377 3,767

b) ‘Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share, Each holder of
the equity shares is entitled to one volte per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian
Rupees. The Dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of directors is subject to the approval of
sharcholders in the ensuing Annual general meeling.

[uring the year no interim/ final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, atter distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

¢} Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Equity Shares of INR 10 each No. of shares | % holding in | No. of shares % holding in the
fully paid (in Lakhs) the equity (in Lakhs) equity shares
shares

Mr.Mukesh Luthra 91.8 24.37% 91.8 24.37%
Mps.Vandana Luthra 167.1 44.35% 167.1 44.35%
Leon International Limited 51.4 13.63% 514 13.65%
M/s Indivision India Partners 56.9 15.11% 56.9 151 1%
Total ' 3672 367.2

d) Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding
the reporting date:
Equity shares with voting rights:
Fully paid up by way of bonus shares issued on
September 27, 2013 354.11 Lakhs Shares

¢) Shares reserved for jssue under opfions :
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option Q@?E,W%an of the Company .
'5«:“‘ ’ o, - r'fx’-‘
. N

please refer note 33. P X

L
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11. Financial Liabilities

11(a) Borrowings "March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Non current ‘

Term loans from banks (Secured) (Refer Note (1) below 3226 4,640

Term Loans - others (Unsecured) (Refer Note (2) below 700 -
76 96

Vehicle loans from banks/others (Secured)
Current maturities of long term borrowings disclosed under (121 (1.434)
"gther current financial liabilities™ [Refer Note 1 1{c) ' '

2,791 3,302

Current
Cash credit (Secured) (Refer Note {3) below 308 435
Cash credit (Unsecured) (Refer Note (3) below 500 432
808 867
Aggregate seoured loans 3,610 5171
Aggregate unsecured loans 1,200 432

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

(1) Details of terms of repayment and security provided in respect of
the secured long-term borrowings:

Term loan from banks: ‘

HDFC Bank [Refer Note (N - 58

HDFC Bank [Refer Note (iDl 167 500

ICICT Bank [Refer Note (ii)] 850 1,150

Yes Bank [Refer Note (iv)] 714 1,010
1,495 1,922

Yes Bank [Refer Note (V)
3.226 4,640

Security details:
(i) The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all the entir

the company, both present and future including escrow an credit card receivables.

(i) The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all the stock, book debts (including escrow on credit
card receivables) and movable plant and machinery of the company, both present and future. Originally
the loan is repayable in 54 monthly instalments out of these 6 monthly instalments of INR 27.8 Lakbs

alongwith interest at Base rate plus 1.25% ate pending as an March 31, 2019.

(iii) The loan is secured by 2 first pari passu charge on all current assels and movable fixed assets both
present and future. Originally the loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalments out of these 34 monthly
instalments of INR 25 Lakhs each alongwith interest at Base rate plus 0.5% are pending as on March 31,
2016.

(iv) The loan is secured by a first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both
present and future. Originally the loan is repayable in 54 ‘monthly instalments out af these balance 29
monthly instalments of [NR 24.6 Lakhs alongwith interest at MCLR plus 0.50% are pending as on
March 31, 2019.

(v} The loan is secured by 2 first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both
present and future. Originally the loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalments out of these balance 42
monthly instalments of INR 35.6 Lakhs alongwith interest at MCLR plus 0.50% are pending as on

March 31, 2019.

e current assets and movable fixed assets of

{2) The unsecured loan has been taken from Palm Land Hospitality Private Limited and is payable within 3

years alongwith interest at 12% p.a.
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3

(a)
(b}

©

1i(b}.

11{c).

Details of terms of repayment provided in respect of the secured current borrowings:

Cash Credit March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

Secured '

Yes Bank Limited [Refer Note (a)] 306. 201

Axis Bank Limited [Refer Note (b)) , 2 144
: ' 308 435

Unsecured

Yes Bank Limited [Refer Note (€)] 500 432

500 432
Total 808 867
The loan is secured by first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets (excluding

vehicle) both present and future and payable on demand along with interest at base rate plus 0.30%.
The loan is secured by first pari passu charge on all current assets and movable fixed assets both present

and future and pavable on demand along with interest at base rate plus 1.10%.

The loan is payable on demand along with interest at Base rate plus 0.50%.
The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and interest during the year.
Trade payables March 31,2019 March 31,2018
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro

. ; 7.132 6,651
enterprises and Small enterprises _
Payable io related parties (refer note 29) ' 528 782
Total 7.660 7,433
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally sctiled on 60-day terms.
Other financial liabilities March 31,2019 March 3i, 2018
Current
Current maturitics of long term borrowings 1,211 1,434
(Refer note 11(a))
Interest acciued butnot due on borrowings 29 29
Security deposits received 95 17
Payable for capital purchases 515 97¢
Total 1,850 2,450
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12. Provisions March 31{. 2019 March 31, 2018

Non- current
Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuity (Refer to note 31) 495 369
495 369
Other provisions '
Provision for decommissioning liabilities 42 38
42 ' 38
537 407
Current T )
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity {Refer to note D 92 70
Provision for compensated absences 188 175
280 245

Provision for decommissioning liabilities

Under few operating lease agreements entered by the Company, it has to incur restoration cost for
restoring lease premises to the original condition at the time of expiry of lease period. Approximately
50% of the outflow is expected to be in 1-3 years. Remaining outflow is expected to be in 4-9 years.

March 31,2018 March 31, 2018

At the beginning ot the year 38 35
Arising during the year 4 3
At the end of the year 42 38
13. Contract liabilities - “March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Non-current :
Contract liabilities ) 852 465
8§52 465
Current
Contract liabilities 5,369 4,890
5,369 4,890
6,221 3,355

Contract Liabilities consists of

(i) revenue refating to unexecuted packages of beauty and slimming services for which amount has been
received in advance from customers and are non refundable;

(ii} revenue relating to franchisee sign up fee for which amount has been received in advance from
franchisor and are non refundable and are recognized over the period of contract with the franchisee.

14. Other liabilities March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Non-current
Lease Equalisation 158 155
158 155
Current
Interest accrued on trade pavables - -
Statutory dues 790 348
Book overdraft - -
Advance from Franchisees/ Government 364 226
Lease Equalisation 44
618
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VLCC Health Care Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Muarch 31, 2017
(Al amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise siated)

15. Income tax

a) The major comp011eﬁts of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 an
Profit or loss

March 31,2019 _ March 31, 2018

Tux Expense:
Current tax - -
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year - 2)
Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or ) )
loss

Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred tax related to fens recagnised in OCI during the year:

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Net loss/(gain) on remeasuraments of defined benefit plans - -

Income tax charged to OCI - -
Asat Asat
b) Current tax asset/ (liabilities) (net) . Mareh 31,2018 March 31,2018
Current tax assets 3,322 3,320
Curvent tax (liabilities) /(Provision) (2,998) {2,998)
Current tax asset/ (liabilities) (net) 324 322

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for
March 31,2019, March 31, 2018.

As at As at
March 31,2010 March 31,2013

Total (lzomprchenswe income before tax from continuing : (864) (1.680)
aperations

At India’s statutory income tax rate of 34.608% (March 3 1,

2018: 34.608%) (299 (>81)
Donation expenses 2 -
Insurance claims receivable written off - -
Deferrad tax not recorded (refer note (i) 299 581
Others {net) . ‘ - -

At the effective income tax rate - -

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and
toss and other comprehensive income
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Balance Sheet: Asat Asat
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Deferred tax assets relates to the following '

Depreciation/amortisation on property.plant and 1,429 1.429
equipment/intangible assets ' ’ o
Employee benefits 127 127
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 82 82
Provision for doubtful assets 2 2
Provision for doubtful deposits 54 54
Lease equalisation reserve 74 74
Carry forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation 873 873
Other 78 78
Tota! deferved tax assets (Net) 2,719 2,719
Statement of profit and loss As at As at

March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Deferred tax assets relates to the following (refer note (i)
Employecs benefits - -
Depreciation/amortisation on property,plant and
equipment/intangible assets ) )
Carry forward losses/unabsorbed depreciation - -
Provision for doubtful irade reccivables - -
Deferred Revenue - -
Other - -
Total deferred tax assets (Net) - -
Movement in Deferred tax assets March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
At the beginning of the year 2,719 2,719
Tax credit recognised in profit and loss - -

" Tax credit recognised it OCI - -
At the end of the year 2.719 2719

(i} As the Company has brought forward unused tax losses, deferred tax asset has been recognised to the

extent of probable future taxable profits over next four years and accordingly

no incremental deferred tax

credit has been recognised on the timing difforences and tax losses arising during the current year.
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Note:

16. Revenue from contracts with customers March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Sale of services [Refer Note (i) below] 36,333 34,575
Sale of products [traded goods] 1,644 1,259
Revenue from contracts with customers 37,977 35,834
Notes:

(i) Sale of services comprises:
Beauty and slimming services 29,064 28,828
Tuition fees 6,401 4,972
Income from Franchisees 237 239
Royalty income 631 536
Total - Sale of services 36,333 34,575
Sale of products [traded goods] 1,644 1,259
Revenue from contracts with customers 37,977 35,'834

(iii) Timing of revenue recognifion
Goods/Services transferred at a point in time 5,744 5,510
Services transferred over time 32,233 30,324

(1v) India 37,946 35,820
Qutside India 3 14
Revenue from contracts with customers 37,977 35,834

(v) Contract balances March 31, 2019 Maich 31, 2018
Trade receivables 278 351
Centract labilities 6.221 5,355
Movement of Contract Liabilities
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
Balance as at beginning of the year {Reported) 5,355 4812
Adjustment a3 per [nd AS 115 through retained earnings - 638
Balance as at beginning of the year (Restated) 5,355 5,450
Adjustment as per Ind AS 115 67 76
Deferred during the year (Net) 799 (171)
Balance as at end of the year 6,221 5,355

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are penerally on terms of 30 days.

Contract liabilities includes advance from customers received for suppl

5,

y of services.
M
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(vi) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price* 37,977 35,834
Revenue from contracts with customers ' 37,977 35,834

* Contracted prices are net of discounts
(vii) Performance obligations

'The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)

Revenue expected to be recognised upon delivery of Services

Within one year 5.369 4,890
More than one year 852 465

The performaﬁce obligation is satisfied upon delivery of goods to the customers. The unsatisfied
performance obligations represents goods not delivered to the customers by end of the reporting period.

17. Other income March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Miscellaneous Income 99 25
99 25
18. Finance income March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest from banks on deposits _
{Tax deducted at source INR I Lakh 9 7
(March 31, 2018: INR 1 Lakh)]
[nterest on Security Deposits at amortised cost (refer note (i) 130 87
Interest on loan to employees 2 !
Interest on Income tax refund 11 -
Total ' 152 25
Note (i)

Interest on security deposits at fair value has been measured using effective interest rate method and the
difference between fair value and transaction value of the security deposit has been recognised as
deferred lease expense and deferred lease expenses has been amortised as rental expenses.

) *c:"l.-\_‘uu /
rigro®
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19,

20.

21.

22,

Cost of Materials Consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of material consumed

There are no components that individually account for more than 1

{Increase) / decrease in inventories-Traded goods
Inventories at the end of the year:

Inventories at the beginning of the year:

Decrease in inventories

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expenses {Refer to note 31)
Staff welfare expenses

Finance cost

Interest on term loan

Interest on cash credit

Interest- others

Other Finance Cost

Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in discount rate
on provisions

. Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of Property, plant & equipment (Refer to note 4)
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer to note 5)
Total

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
1,589 1,392
4,315 4,870
5904 © 6,262
1,435 1,589
4,469 4,673

0% of total value of consumabies.

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
583 326
326 307
(257) -19
March 31,2018 March 31,2018
12,064 10,550
466 410
129 126
593 555
13,254 11,641
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
413 543
83 73
41 .
1023 979
4 3
1564 1598
March 31,2019 March 31,2018
1,858 1.945
86 105
1,944 2,050
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24. Other expenses

Rent [Refer to Note 28]
Generator Rent and maintenance charges
Electricity and water charges
Repuirs and maintenance
- Building
- Equipment
- Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Communication Expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expenses [Refer to Note 30]
Legal and professional expenses
Doctor's consultancy charges
Payments to auditors [Refer Note (i) below]
Vehicle running and maintenance
House keeping charges
Membership and subscription
Office expenses
Laundry Expenses
Security Charges
Directors sitting fees
Advertisement expenses
Sales Promotion expenses
Exhibition Expenses
Student Training expenses
Loss on fixed assets sold/ written off
_Net loss/(gain) on foreign exchange transactions
Provision/write back for doubtful trade receivables (Net of
bad debts written off Rs. 156 Lakhs (March 31, 201 $:28
Lakhy)
Advances written off

Miscellaneous Expenses
Total

March 31, 2019

March 31,2018

5123 4,728
221 218
1,046 1,006
316 274
43 47
827 589
103 12¢
70 71
232 253
1,610 1,373
78 128

5 0
582 867
963 931
33 32
86 110
330 781
11 15
203 168
185 197
is55 130
23 18
3,186 3,631
277 787
199 113
78 66
3 24
44 3
an 3
6 id
299 202
16,846 16,901
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24,

28,

Other expenses (Cont'd)

Note (i)
Payment to Auditors

Payments to the auditors comprises (net of service tax input
credit, where applicable):

To statutory auditors:

- Audit Fee

- Onher services

Reimbursement of expenses

To cost auditors for cost audit
Total

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and share data used in the
basic and diluted EPS computation:
Nominal value of equity shares

Profit/(Loss) atiributable to equity shareholders for
computing Basic and Dilutive EPS {A)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year for computing Basic EPS (B)

Dilutive effect of share based paymenis on weighted average
number of cquity shares outstanding during the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year for computing Diluted EPS (C)

Basic earning per share (A/B)
Diluted earning per share (A/C)

March 31,2019 March 31,2018
24 21
5 5
2 4
N 30
2 2
33 32
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
10.00 10.00
(864) (1,672)
376.68 376.68
376.68 376.68
(229} (4.44)
{2.29) {4.44)

There have been no fransaciions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and

the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
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26, Payables to micro and small enterprises
The Ministry of Micro, $mall and Medium Enterprises has issved an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which
recommends that the Micro and Smail Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the
entrepreneurs memorandum number as atlocated after filing of the memorandum. Accordingty, the disclosure in respect of
the amounts payable to such enterprises as at the year-end has been made in the financial statements based on information
available with the Company as under: ) ‘

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018

The amounts remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of the year

-Principal 146 42
-interesi 4 -
_the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
Micro, Smal} and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of
2006), along with the amount of the payment made 10 the supplier - -
beyond the appointad day during each accountng year,
_fle amount of interest dus and payable for the pericd of delay in making
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small ) )
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
_The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting yeur ) B
_the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid 1o the smali enterprise, for the purpese of disallowance of & 4 -
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and -
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

27. Contingent tiabilities 20d commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(i) Contingent lizbilities March 3t, 2019 March 31,2018
Guarantezs/Letters of credit {Refer Note (a) below] 4,921 7.409
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:-

_YAT demand [Refer Mote (b) below] 114 114
_ Service Tax [Refer Note (¢ below] 17 13
- Luxury ‘Yax [Reter Note (d) below] 32 32
- Customs Duty [Refer Note {g) below] 91 91
- Income Tax {Refer Note (f} below] 149 166

5,334 7827

73 Tne Company has given guaranteeflstter of crediis to certain banks in respect of credit facilities granted to its subsid iaries

Cuarantees/ Letters of credit  Inres ect to Credit Maturit )

Given to ' Faciiiges granted to Date Y Maret: 31,2019 March 31, 2018
ICICI Bank VL.CC Singapore Ple L 30-Aug-t & - 264
{CIC] Bank - YLCC Intemational LLC {-Sep-21 2193 2,994
HDIFC Bank VLCC International Inc. 1-Out-18 - 323
HDFC Bank VLCC Internaticnal Inc. 30-Noy-20 1247 1,420
Axis Bank - ' VLCC International LLC 2-Sep-20 101G 1.34%
Mashreq Bank. Duba: VLCC International LLC 3i-dan-22 471 1,065

4,921 7.40%

(b) Company has 11 cases with respect to demand of VAT for different states for which appeals sre pending with
Commissioner {Appeals) of 1espactive state.

() Company has 11 cases for service tax out of which, 8 are pending with CESTAT and 3 with Appeliate author ities .

(d) Company has one case of luxury tax which is pending with Appellate tribunal {commercial tax).
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(e)

M

Demand for customs duty aggregating to INR 91 Lakhs.(Mareli 1. 2018:91 Lakhs} for the year 2012-16 is disputed by the
Company and the Company had preferred an appeal with CESTAT. On similar matter for another consignment, CESTAT
vide its order dated 30.6.2017 has glready set aside the demand and gave order in favour of the Company

Income Tax demands: .

Demand for assessment year 2010-11 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal betore
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeais) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year
2016-17 and consequently the demand has been reduced to INR 5.5 Lakhs from INR 97.2 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is
pending with Income Tax Apetlant Tribunal (ITAT). The Company had aiready deposited INR 20 Lekhs {March 31,2018:
INR 20 Lakhs) under protest. : :

Demand tor income tax aggregating to INR 116 Lakhs (March 31, 2018; INR 116 Lakhs) for the assessment year 2011-12
is disputed by the Company and the Company has preferred an appeal which is pending for hearing. The Company has
deposited INR 10 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 INR 10 Lakhs) under protest.

Demand for assessment year 2012-13 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal before
Commissioner of Income Fax {Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year
201617 and consequently the demand has been reduced to INR 6.9 Lakhs from TNR 73 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is
pending with ITAT which is pending for hearing .

Demand for assessment year 2013-14 is disputed by the Company and the Company had preferred an appeal before
Commissioner of Income Tax {Appeals) which was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year
2077-18 and consequently the demand has been reduced to INR 4.4 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending witly ITAT which
is pending for hearing .

Demand for income tax aggregating to INR 22 Lakhs (March 31, 2018 INR 22) for the assessmeni year 2014-15 is
disputed by the Company and the Company has preferred an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which
was substantially decided in favour of the Company in the financial year 2618-19 and consequently the demand has been
reduced to INR 5.7 Lakhs. Now the Appeal is pending with ITAT which is pending for hearing.

Demand for income tax aggregating to [NR 6.8 Lakhs (March 31, 2018: 98 Lakhs} for the assessment year 2015-16 is
disputed by the Company and the Company has preferred an appeal which is pending for hearing before 1ITAT,

Based on the provisions of various laws, the Company has been legally advised that the ultimate likelyhoad of the above
demands being decided aguinst the Company is not probable and accordingly, no provision has been made in respect of the
above matters.

Demand where likelihood of Kability is remote :-

Demand for income tax aggregating to INR 2,726 Lakhs (March 31, 201 g8 Wil for the assessment year 2016-17 has been
caised on account of disallowance of certain expenses on adhoc basis and taxes on reverue deferred to be recognised in
subsequent years. The Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) which 15 pending for
hearing. The company has also filed High-Pitched petition with the Principal CCIT (High Pitched Petition Cormittee). In
view of this petition, the demand is not being pursued by Departrient. ) )

The Company has favourable arders from Hon’ble High Court of Delhi against timing of taxation of deferred revenue in
earlier years in its own case and also believes that the additions on account of disallowances of expenses on adhog basis is
not tenable.

The Company based on internal assessment supported by its legal counsel believes that the possibility of any liability
devolving upon the Conpany apainst such demands upon final setfiement, is remote and hence 1o provigion has been
There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (8C) judgement on: P dated 28th February, 2019
relating to pravident fund matter. However, there is uncertainty with respect to the applicability of the judgement and
period from which the same applies and accordingly, the impact, if any, is not ascertainable and conseéqunily no etfect has
been given in the accounts

(ii} Commitmnents warch 31,2019 March 31,2018

28.

Estimaicd amount of contracts remaining to be executed
on capital account and not provided for:

- Tangible Assets

For lease related commitments, refer note 28. There are no other commitments.
Details of leasing arrangements

The Company lias entered into coperating lease arrangements for certain facilities and otfice premises. Some of the leases
are non-canceltzble and may be renewed for a further period of six years based an mutual agreement of the parties.' The

lease agreements provide for an increase in the lease paymenls oy 5% 10 15% every three years. Expected future
commitments for non-cancellable leases are as foilows:

March 31,2019 Marci 31,2018

Future minimum lease payments:

- nol later than one year 232 31
- Iater than one vear and ot later than five years 292 -
| ease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and 5923 4728

Loss [Refer note 24]
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29, Related party transactions

1) Details of related parties:
Description of relationship
Names of related parties

(A) Subsidiary companies
VLCC Personal Care Ltd

VLCC Online services Private Limited
VLCC Wellness Research Centre Pvt Lid
Vanitycube Mobilz Spa And Salon Pvt Ltd (w.e.f 19th Junie 2017)
VLCC Intemnational Inc
VLCC International LLC *
VLCC Middle East LLC.*
VLCC International Kuwait Health Care Institute Limited Liability Company *
VLOC International Qatar Co W.L.L. *
VLCC International Limited Liability Company - Oman**
YLCC Europe Limited

VLLC International Bahrain WLL #

VLCC Healtheare Egypt LLC

Wyann International SDN BHD

VI.CC Wellness (East Africa) Limited

VLCC Overseas Limited

VLCC Health Care (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd

VLCC Personal Care (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd

VLCC Healthcare Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

VLCC Education Lanka (Pvt) Ltd

VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd

Globa! Vantage lnnovative Group Pte Lid (Gvig}

Celblos Dermnal Research Centre Pte Lid

Excel Beauty Solution SDN BHD

Bellawave Cosmetics Pte Ltd

VLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Lid***

VLCC Wellness (Thailand) Co.Ltd

{B) Others - Controlled trust
VLCC Employee Weltare Trust #it

* Ot of this. 49% is held direcily by VLCC International lnc. and for the balance 51% shareholding. the Company has entered
into an agreement with the other shareholders whereby the risk and rewards of the business rest entirely with VLCC
International Inc. and accordingly, VLCC International Inc. has 100% economic interest in these companies.

#+ (gt of this, 70% is held direatly by VLCC Internationai lae. and for the balance 30% shareholding, the Company has entered
into an agreernent with the other shareholder whereby the risk and rewards of the business rest entirely with ¥YLCC
International Inc. and accordingly, VLCC International Inc. has 100% economic interest in this company.

#¥ VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd holds 49.90% of the voting rights in VLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Ltd while other shareholder holds
all the Class A preference shares in VLCC Holding (Thailand)} Co.ltd. V1.CC Singapore Pte Ltd also controls the affairs and
the board of directors of VLCC Holding (Thailand) Co.Ltd. The chairman is appointed by VLCC Singapore Pte Lid and all
significant rights in respect of dividend is enjoyed by VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd. Accordingly. VLCC Singapore Pte Ltd is
considered to be the holding company of VLLC Holding (Thailand) Co.Ld.

# Sold durine the orevious vear.
& The Cowmpany has no rights on the variable returns from its invoivement with investee and has no ability to affect those return

tlirough its power over the investee. In the light of which , Company has not, consnlidated the Employee Welfere trust.
o
P g £

ot
.,
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(C) Key Management Persommel (KMP) as defined un

(D) Relative of Key Management Personnel

II) Details of related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2019 and outst

der [nd AS

Mukesh Luthra, Chairman
Jayant Khosta, Managing Director wefl 10th

Jan 2019
Sandeep Abuja, Executive Director

Narinder Kumar, Group Chief Financial
Officer
Vandana Luthra, Wife of Mukesh Luthra

anding balance as at March 31, 2019

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
A, Revenue
Sale of goods
. VLCC Healthcare (Bangladesh) Pvt Lud 5 3
- VLCC Middle East LLC - 3
- Bellawave Cosmetics Pte Lid 23 -
- Vanitycube Mobile Spa And Salon Private Limited -31 11
- VLCC Personal Care Limited 0 27
C. Expenses
Purchase of Consumables
- VLCC Personal Care Limited 870 8§63
- YLCC Online Services Private Limited 137 30
- Rellawave Cosmetics Pte Litd 147 388
Rent
. VLCC Wellness Research Centre Pyt Ltd 39 3
Professianal Fees
- Vandana Luthia 176 160
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

1). Balance outstanding at the end of the vear
Trade receivables ‘
- VLCC Healtheare (Bangladesh) Pvt Ltd - 5
- Vanitycube Mobile Spa And Salon Privaie Limited 16 i3
Other Financial Assets - Current

kK] 33

- VLCC Employee Welfare Trust
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Trade payables

- VLCC Personal Care Limited 3N 622
- VLCC Wellness Research Centre Pvt Ltd : 16 5
- Bellawave Cosmétics PTE Ltd 47 120
- VLCC Online Services Private Limited 87 35
- Vandana Luthra 16 15
Guarantees (Refer note 27)

- VLCC Tnternational LLC 3,674 5,401
- VLCC Singapore Pte Lid - 264
- VLCC International Inc 1,247 1,743

1) Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company
For the year ended  TFor the year ended
March 31,201% March 31, 2018

Short-term employee benefits 198 137
Terminatioh benefits 9 a
Share-based payment transactions { Refer Note 33) - -
Total compensation paid to key management 207 166

personuel

Post-employment grahiity are incurred at company level and hence not provided here.
also refer note 33 for employee share based payments.

1V} Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

For the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by
retated parties (March 31, 2018: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through exainining the financial

position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

30, Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,
requires that the board of directors of every eligible company, shall ensure that the company spends, in every financial vear, at

. least 2% of the average net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years, i pursuance
ot its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. The provision of CSR expenditure 13 1ot applicable to the company in view of

lnsses in past 3 years.

Year ended
March 31,2019

Year ended
March 31, 2018

(@) Gross amount required to bz spent by the Company during the year™

{b) Amount spent during the year on :
. Donation To Khushii Foundation
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31, Gratuity and other posi-employment benefit plans

a) Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contribution towards employees™ provident fund, and employees’ state insurance plan scheme. Under the schemes,
the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes, to these defined
cositribution schemes. The Company has recognized curing the year as expense towards contribution to these plais as below:

For the year For the year
ended March 31, ended March 31,
2019 2018
Provident fund 466 410
Employees’ state insurance scheme 170 151
Teatal 630 561

b) Gratuity scheme

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed tive years of service is
entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the nuember’s length of service and salary at retirement age. This
is a fiunded benefit ptan for qualifying employees. The Company makes contributions to the VLCC Health Care Limited Employees
Group Gratuity Scheme("Gratuity Trust"). LIC policies arc taken by the Gratuity Trust created by Company to eaver the liability of the
Company. The scheme provides for a lump sum payment Lo vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or 0n
termination of employment subject to a maximum of INR 20 Lakhs. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benelit expense recognised in the Statement of profit or i

funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

oss and the

March 31, 2619 March 31,2018

Change in penefit nbligation

Present vaiue of obligation as at the beginning of the 544
year
Add: Cutrent service cost 96
Add: Past service cost -
Aad: Imerest cost 41
Add: Actuarial (gain) / loss 67
Less: Benefits paid (82)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the .
| 666
year
Change in plan assets
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 106
Add: Expected retumn on plan assets 8
Add: Contribution by the Company S0
Less: Benafits paid (823
Add: Actuarial gain / {loss} 3
Plan assets at the end of the year 79
Present value of oliigavion 660
Luss: Fair value of plan assels (79
Met assets/{liabtiity) 587
Liability/ (Asset) recognized in the financial statements : 587
Curvent 92
493

Nou-carrent

460

81
24

14

24
(79)

544

154
13
25

(79

{7

106

344
£106)
38

438
70
368
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31, Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans (Cont'd)

Net defined benefit Cost/(Income) included in
Statement of Profit & Loss at period end
Add: Current service cost
Add: Past service cost
Add: [Interest cost
Net cost

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Effect of Change in Financial Assumptions
Effect of Experience Adjustments

Return on Plan Assets {Excluding Iaterest)
Total Remeasurements Recogrised in OCl
{Gain)/Loss

Ecenomic assumptions

Discount rate
Rate of increase in compensation levels
Expected rate of refurn on plan assets

Demograpkic assumptious
Retirement Age {years)
Mortality Rate
Employee Tumover / Attrition Rate - All Ages

Estimate of amount of contribution in the immediate

next year )
Composition of the plan assets is as follows:
Bond Fund

March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2019 is as shown below:

Defined Benefit Obligation — Discount Rate +1%
Diefined Benefit Obtigation — Discount Rate -1%
Defined Benefit Ohligation — Salary Escalation Rate +1%
Defined Benefit Obligation — Salary Escalation Rats -1%

The expected benefit payments in future years is as follows:
March 31, 2019
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021
March 31, 2022
March 31,2023
March 31, 2024
March 31, 2024 to March 31, 2028
March 31, 2025 to March 31, 2029

‘I'he weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obhgation at the end 0
5.31 years).

t'the
-

96 21
0 24
a3 21
129 126
10 -
57 24
3 7
70 31
March 31,2012 March 31, 2018
7.1%% 7.47%
4.5% 4.5%
8.5% 8.5%
60) years 60 years
IALM [2006 — 200ALM [2006 — 2008]
15% 15%
129 111
100% 100%
March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
(36) (30
40 33
40 33
37N {3n
NA 87
106 96
130 120
139 . 130
153 153
166 NA
NA 1,233
1,294 NA

reporting period is 5.29 years (March 31, 201%:
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32. Segment Reporting

The Company's operations predominantly relates to providing beauty and slimming services including sales of related products through

wellness centres and vocational trainings at Institutes for imparting educational trainings rel
management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision maker (COD

allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators pertaining
(i) Slimming & beauty Services
(i} Educational Vocational training for imparting education rel ating to beauty and

The Company operations are in India and thus no geographic segment is required.
Segment revenue and results

to following two reportable segments.

nutrition.

The expenses and income which are not directly attributable to any business scgment are shown as unallocable expenditure

(net of unallocable income}.
Segment assets and liabilities

ating to beauty. slimming and fitness. Based on the
M) evaluates the Company's performance and

Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable or allocable to segments are disclosed under each reportable segment. All ather assets and

liahilifies are disclnsed as ymallacable

inter-segment transfers.

; Fixed assets that are nsad inferchanpeahlv amnng:
The measurement principles of segments are consistent with those used in preparation of these

ot sesments are not allncated to seoments.
financial assets. There are no

Beauty & | Educational]  Total Beauty & |[Educational  Total
Reportable Segments Slimming | Vocational | March 31, Slimming | Vocational| March 31,
Services Training 2015 Services Training 2018 *
Revenue
Sales 31,178 6,799 37,977 30,581 5,253 35,834
Other Income 91 8 99 21 4 25
Total Revenue 31,269 6.807 38,076 30,602 5,257 35,859
Resalt
Segment Expenses 31,733 5,795 37,528 31,334 4,702 36,036
Segment Result (464) 1,012 548 (732} 555 (177)
Finance Costs (1,564} {1,598)
Finance Income 152 926
Prior Period Tax Adjustments - 8
Taxes - -
Net Profit After Tax (864) (1,672)
Other Information
) Beauty & |Educational Total Beauty & |Educational Total
Reportable Segments Slimming | Vocational | March 31,] Slimming | Vocational March 31,
Services Training 2019 Services Training 2018
Sepment Assels 12.982 1.588 14,570 13,698 1,832 15,530
Unallocated Assets 13,065 12,265
Total Assets 27,636 27,795
Segment Liabilities 14,551 2,287 16,338 12,635 1,637 15,273
Unallocated Liabilities 4,810 5,602
Total Liabilities 21,648 20,875
Other Disclosures
Capital Expenditure (including capital 1,iG6 1,156
advanices and capital work in progress)
Depreciation and Impairment
On Fixed Assets 2,050
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33, Disclosures on Employee share based payments

Employee Stock Option Scheme

In a general meeting held on June 26, 2007, the shareholders of the company through a special resolution approved an
employee stock option plan which provides for grant of Stock Options to eligible employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries to acquite equity shares of the Company. The options are t0 be converted into one equity share at a
predetermined price determined at the time of the grant. The options granted vest in a graded manner and are to be

exercised within a period of 6 years from the date of vesting. Under the approve
941,706 shares in tranches to the VLCC Employee Welfare Trust at fair market value determine:

d plan, the company has issued
d on various date of

issue and the trust is holding the shares on behalf of employees till the period the granted options are exercised by the
employees in accordance with the plan. Out of these, 450,193 Options have been exercised by 12 employees on

4.05.2015.

The ESOP plan 2007 was replaced/substituted with the approval of shareholders at general meeting held on January
12, 2016, with a new plan called "VLCC Employee Stock Option Plan 2015" and all the outstanding and not granted,
lapsed options lying under the present VLCC Employee Stock Option Plan 2007 as on December 11, 2015 had been
wransferred to the new Plan and accordingly existing ESOP Plan 2007 stands cancelled and be absorbed in VLCC
ESOP Plan 2015. The Plan got modifed by Shareholders vide its meeting on 10th Jan 2019 with respect to options to

be granted to Managing Director. The Company granted 376,680 options to Managing
from grant date subject to achievement of certain profitabili

will be vested after 3 years
compensation committee.

Employee stock optiofs details as on the Balance Sheet date are as fotlows:

director on 10 Jan 19 which
ty as approved by

Particulars During the year ended During the year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Options Weighted average Options Weighted average
(Numbers) | exercise price per (Numbers) | exercise price per
option (INR) option (INR)
Option outstanding at the beginning 89,571 81 124,204 82
of the year
Granted during the year: 376,680 183 - -
Vested during the year: - - - -
Exercised during the year: - - - -
Lapsed/Forfeited during the year: 21,571 47 34,633 87
Options catstanding at the end of the 444,680 169 89,571 81
year: '
Options available for grant: 46,833 401,942
|

The weighted average contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 201 9 was 6 years {March 31,

2018: 4 years).

The weighted average fair value of the options granted during the year was INR 183 { March 31, 2013: Nil).
The range of exercise price for the options outstanding at the end of the year was INR 56 - Rs 192 (March 31, 2018:

INR 56 - INR 192).

The following tables list the inputs to the models used for the years ended March 31,

March 31, 2019

Dividend yield (%) 0%
Expected volatility (%) f 50%
Risk—free interest rate (%o) 7.45%
Expected life of share options (years) 6 years
Weighted average share price (INR ) 11523
Mode! used Black Scholes

2019 and March 31, 2018

March 31, 2018

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
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34. Financial instruments - Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade payables,
‘Danks for providing lean (o its subsidiaries. The wain purpose of these

borrowings, ad Sapital reditors. Further, the

finasncial liabilities is to finance

Company has given guarantee t0 VArions
the Company’s operstions and 10 provide guarantees 10

sopport its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets includes secutity depoasits, wade receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The Company is exposed to
supported by team nandling Treasury function that advises on
financial performance of the compauy.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fait value of futute cash flows of a financial
market Tisk management is to manage and

imarket gisk, credit risk and liquidity visk. The Company's sendor level
the appropriate financial risk governance

control market risk exposures within acceptable parametess.

IMARAGEIIEAL QVETSEES the management of these risks and is
framework to mitigate potential adverse effects on the

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The objective of

while optimising the retum.

Market risk comprises three types of risk; interest rate risk, currency sk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk.

The sensitivity analyses in the follawing sections relate to the position as at March

31,2019 and March 31, 2018.

Sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item

is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market tisks. The analyses exclude the mpact of movemesits in inarket variables on: the careying values of
pratuity and other post-retirement ohligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabalities.

i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
Compaiy's EXpoSUre 10 the risk of changes in market interest
Company does not have any fixed rate borvowings as at yoar end.
The foliowing table demonsiraics the sensitivity to a reasonably possiblie

other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the

Increase/decrease in

flaws of a financial instrument will fluctuats
rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest (3tes.

change in interest rates. peing a 0.50% increase or decrease in the interest rate,

because of changes in masket interest rates. The

with all

impact on floating rate bomrowings, as follows:

Fffect on profitloss

agis points before
March 31,2019
INR. Borrowings +50 (24}
INR Borrowings 50 24
March 31,2018
TNR Bosrowings +50 (31
INR Borrowings -50 31

1) Foreign currency risk
Foreign owrency fisk is
Company’s exposurs to the risk of changes
denominated in a foreign curreney).

The Company has transdctional currency eXposnres arising from sales or purchases in curencies other than the
of affairs can be affected by movements in foreign currencies, primasily US Doliar, Euro and SGD.

The company's financial state

the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an expasure
in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to

will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
the Company's operating activities (when sevenue of eXpense is

Company’s fanctionsl currency. which is INR.

The Company does not hedge any foreign currency exposure as the amount involved is non material a5 of now.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial

assets and liabilities denominated i different currencies are as follows!

In equivalent INR Lakhs
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
As at . :
Financiol assets Financial liabilities Financial nssets l:ma.r:c.xal
liabilities
United States Dollar (USD} 23 343 5 637
United States Dollar (8GD) - a7 - 120
Tatal 23 391 5 757

34, Financinl instruments - Financial risk management abjectives and policies (Cont'd)

The Company's exposure 1o foreign currency arises
fanctional currency of the Company.
currencies a1 31 March would have affected the measurement of
by the amounts shown below.

where Company holds financial assets
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the INR, US dollar or other forcign currencies against all other
financial instruments denominated in a foresgn currcicy and

and financial Liabilities denominated in currency different from the

affecied equity and profit or loss

curyenc ate

March 31,2019

U8 Dollars +5%
5%

SGD +5%
5%

March 31,2018

US Dollars +5%
-5%

SGR +5%
-5%

Change in foreign

Effect an profit
efore ta

16
(16)

2
e

32
{32

[
&
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B. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer fails to meet its conwactual cbligations.

In respect of trade and ather receivables, the Company is not exposed to any significant sredit tisk expos
advance before rendering the services to the retail customers.

The ageing analysis of rade receivables (net) as of the reporting date is a5 follows:

Less than 6 months More than 6 Total
0|
Trade Receivables as of March 31, 2018 147 204 351
Trade Receivables as of March 31, 2019 15% 19 278

C. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the sisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mesting the obligations associated with its financial linbilities that are setiled by

delivering cash or another financial asset. The Campany’s objestive is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of

basik overdrafts and bank loans. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is fo ensure, a3 far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet it3
damage 1o the Company's reputation.

liabilities when they are due, ander both narmal and stressed conditions, without incurting unacceptable losses or risking

The Company closely monitors its Lquidity position and degloys a robust cash maAnagement systein. The Company MAanages liquidity nisk by maintaining
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, profile of financial assets and labilities. 1t mainiains
al maturities of financial

adequate reserves, borowing lighilities,
adequate sources of financing including loans ¢rom banks at an optimised cost. ‘The tablc below provides the details regarding contractu

liabilities

Asat Asat
March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Less thaxn 1 vear .
808 867

- Borrowings

. Trade pavables 7.660 7.433
- Other financial habilities 1,850 2,450
Total 10,318 10,748
More than 1 vear

- Borrowings 2,791 3,302
Total 2,791 3,302

35, Capital Management

The Company's policy is to [maintain sirong capital base so a5 t0 maintain invester, creditor and market gonfidence and to sustain future

development of business. The management monitors the returm o capital and profitability.

The Company seeks 10 [maintain a balance between the higher retuns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowing and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. The primary cbjective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the
shareholder value

Company menitars capital using gearing ratio which is calculated as underlying net debt divided by total equity plus underlying net debs. The
Company's policy is 1o keep the gearing ration below 40%, The Comyparry measures underlying net debi as tolal liabilities, comprising interest
bearing loans and porrowings, excluding any dues 1o subsidiaries or group company less cash and cash equivaleats. For the purpose of Capital
management, total capital includes issued equity ocapital, share premium and all other reserves attributable fo the equity heiders of the

Company.

Cotpany's adjusted net debt to equity ratio at March 31,2019 1s as follows:
Gearing ratio

As at March 31, Asat March 31,

2019 2018

Borrowings (Refer to note ! 1a)} 4,810 5,603
Less: cash and cash equivalents

(Refer to note 7(d)) (2.454) (2,013)
Adjusted Net debt 2,356 3,590
Total Equity 5,988 6,521
Total Equity 5,988 6,921
Total Equity and net debt 8,344 10,511
Capital ond adjusted net debt 8,344 10,511
Gearing ratio (Net Debt! Total Equity) 28% 34%

‘Ng changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital Juning the years ended March 31, 2019, March 31, 2018,

wre. Sipnificant revenue is coliected by the Company in
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(All amounts in INR Lakhg unless otherwise stated)

36. Fair values

The management has assessed the fair value of all the financial asscts and ligbilities including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable, security
deposits, other financial assets, investments, trade payables and other financial liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts which is at amortised
cOost.

The carrying amounts of other jtemns carried at amortised cost are reasonable approximation of their fair values.
Accordingly, the Company does not have any financial instruments to be classified under three levels of fair value measurement hierarchy in

March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Particulars ' FVTPL FVYTOCI Am:;sttlzed FVTPL FVTOCI Amortized cost
LIABILITIES
Non- current liabilities
Financia! labilities ,
- Borrowings - - 2,791 - - 3,302
Current assets
Fipancial liabilities
- Borrowings - - 808 - - 867

Long term borrowings includes TNR term loan from the bank which are contracted at floaing rates of interest, reset at short intervals. Accordingly. ths
carrying value of such long term borrowings approximate their fair value
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